
         

 

FELLSMERE  
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2024 

5:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.fellsmerewcd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

22 South Orange Street 
Fellsmere, Florida 32948 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
September 12, 2024 

5:30 P.M. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Approval of Minutes 

1. August 5, 2024 Special Board Meeting…………………………………………………………Page 2 

F. Old Business 

1. Discussion Regarding May 11, 2017 Annual Meeting Minutes………………………………...Page 5 

G. New Business 

1. Discussion of District Management 

2. Status of the Water Control from the Buffer Preserve 

3. Status of the Lateral Cleaning and Maintenance  

H. Administrative Matters 

1. Financials………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 22 

2. Attorney 

3. Manager 

I. Comments from the Public 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
AUGUST 5, 2024 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Special Board Meeting of the Fellsmere Water Control District (“District”) of August 5, 2024, was 
called to order at 10:00 a.m. in the District office located at 109 North Willow Street, Fellsmere, Florida 
32948. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Special Board Meeting had been published 
in the Indian River Press Journal on July 26, 2024, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
Mr. Sakuma stated that the attendance of Supervisors Greg Nelson, Richard Carnell and John Kurtz 
constituted a quorum, and it was in order for the meeting to proceed.  
 
Also in attendance were: District Managers Frank Sakuma and Stephanie Brown of Special District 
Services, Inc.; Todd Wodraska, President of Special District Services, Inc; District Attorney Jonathan 
Johnson of Kutak Rock LLP (by phone); and District Engineer George Simons, P.E. of Carter 
Associates.  
 
Mark Mathes, City Manager of the City of Fellsmere, was also present. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Kurtz asked for discussion of the Fellsmere extension of 97th Street. 
 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

1. July 11, 2024, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing Minutes 
 
Mr. Carnell made a motion, seconded by Mr. Kurtz, approving the July 11, 2024, Regular Board & 
Public Hearing Meeting Minutes. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
F. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There was no old business to come before the Board 
 
G. NEW BUSINESS 
  

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-06 Adopting Goals and Objectives 
 
Resolution No. 2024-06 was presented, entitled: 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-06 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT ADOPTING GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
District Attorney Jonathan Johnson provided an explanation of the District goals and objectives due to 
changes in Florida legislation. The Board revised the District Operations section, specifically changing 
the objective “Water Control Plan in effect” to “Maintain Water Control Plan Compliance,” and 
changing the performance measure from “Water Control Plan in place” to “Water Control Plan in 
Compliance.” 
 
After Board discussion, Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, adopting Resolution 2024-
06, as revised. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. Discussion of District Management 
 
Mr. Nelson spoke in favor of transitioning to a full time employee instead of using contracted support 
for district management. Mr. Kurtz stated that an onsite manager would offer faster response times 
with one person overseeing all District operations. Mr. Wodraska advised that Special District Services 
could offer administrative services in a limited capacity as a supplement to an onsite District Manager. 
Mr. Nelson suggested Mark Mathes be offered employment as the District Manager. 
 
After Board discussion, Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Nelson to extend an offer of 
employment to Mr. Mathes for the District Manager position with the starting salary of $100,000 per 
year, as an employee of the Fellsmere Water Control District effective September 9, 2024. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, authorizing Mr. Nelson to negotiate terms of 
employment with Mr. Mathes, and if needed, the scope of work between Fellsmere and Special District 
Services for support services. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Carnell made a motion, seconded by Mr. Kurtz directing District Attorney Jonathan Johnson to 
send a notice of termination to Special District Services, ending the current Management Services 
Agreement, and noting an effective termination date of September 30, 2024. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

3. Discussion of City of Fellsmere 97th Street Extension 
 
Mr. Mathes discussed the anticipated extension of 97th Street. After Board discussion, Mr. Kurtz made 
a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, for the City of Fellsmere to utilize a prior agreement as a template 
for the conveyance of District owned right-of-way along future 97th Street. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
  
H. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Financials 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Mr. Sakuma noted that the financials were included in the Board package. During Board discussion of 
the financials, Mr. Kurtz made a motion, seconded by Mr. Carnell, authorizing the use of the $300,000 
contingency fund for District operations. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Sakuma provided the Board with a copy of the 2023/2024 financial audit and notified the Board 
that there were no findings. 
 

2. Attorney 
 
There was no attorney report at this time. 
 

3. Manager 
 
Mr. Sakuma had no further comments for the Board. 
 

4. Engineer 
 
District Engineer George Simons provided an update of the ongoing major projects in Main Canal, 
Lateral U, and Park Lateral. The Board discussed the projects and some potential changes in scope for 
several projects based on field conditions.   
 
Mr. Simons notified the Board he would become a part time employee in January, 2025, and introduced 
Garret Miller of Carter Associates. While Mr. Simons will still support the District as the primary 
District Engineer, Mr. Miller will be taking on more tasks related to the District.  
 
I. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public. 

 
J. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Kurtz referred to an e-mail from Senator Erin Grall about concerns regarding the District that she 
has been receiving from Fellsmere residents. Mr. Nelson responded that he would be the liaison for the 
District in discussing the concerns with Senator Grall. 
 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 11:59 a.m. 
There were no objections. 
 

 
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice-President 
 
 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Fellsmere
Water Control District

 Financial Report For
August 2024

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40


	Fellsmere Water Control District - September 12, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 5, 2024 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding May 11, 2017 Annual Meeting Minutes
	Financials




